ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 2, 2013
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel, Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson, Vice Chair
Senator Peter M cciche

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Hollis French

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Cick Bishop
Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 4(FIN)

"An Act relating to the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation

establishing the by the Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska of
natural gas transportation contracts; Al aska Gasline Devel opnent
Corporation as an independent public corporation of the relating
to the regulation by the Regulatory Conm ssion of Alaska of an
in-state natural state; establishing and relating to the in-
state natural gas pipeline fund; making certain gas pipeline
proj ect devel oped by the Al aska Gasline Devel opment Corporation

relating information provided to or by the Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation and its to the regulation by the
Regul atory Commi ssion of Alaska of an in-state natural gas
subsi diaries exenpt frominspection as a public record; relating
to the Joint In-State pipeline that provides transportation by
contract carriage; repealing the statutes Gasline Devel opnent
Team relating to the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation;
relating to the Alaska Natural Gas Devel opnment Authority and
maki ng conformng relating to judicial review of a right-of-way
| ease or an action or decision related to the changes; exenpting
property of a project developed by the Alaska Gasline
Devel opnent devel opnment or construction of an oil or gas
pipeline on state land; relating to the |ease Corporation from
property taxes before the commencenent of comrercial operations;
of a right-of-way for a gas pipeline transportation corridor,
including a corridor for a and providing for an effective date."
natural gas pipeline that is a contract carrier; relating to the
cost of natural resources, permts, and |eases provided to the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2013



Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation; relating to procurenent
by the Alaska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation; relating to the

revi ew

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB

SHORT TITLE;
SPONSOR( S)

01/16/13
01/16/13
01/16/13
01/ 30/ 13
01/30/ 13
01/ 30/ 13
02/ 04/ 13
02/ 04/ 13
02/ 04/ 13
02/ 06/ 13
02/ 06/ 13
02/ 06/ 13
02/ 13/ 13
02/ 13/13
02/13/13
02/ 15/ 13
02/ 15/ 13
02/ 15/ 13
03/01/13
03/01/13
03/01/13
03/ 04/ 13

03/ 04/ 13

03/ 04/ 13
03/ 04/ 13
03/ 04/ 13
03/ 04/ 13
03/ 04/ 13
03/ 05/ 13
03/ 20/ 13
03/ 20/ 13
03/ 21/ 13
03/ 21/ 13

SENATE RES COW TTEE

e Y X R R Lo R Ramn R Ramn R W W W W W N o L R Xamn R Ry

TITLLIZITITIIT £ TIITIIITITIIIZTIZIIZIZIIZIZIZIZS

NN NN AN AN AN AN NN

| N- STATE GASLI NE DEVELOPMENT CORP
REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER, CHENAULT

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/13

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
RES, FIN

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
RES, FIN

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES RPT CS(RES) 6DP 1INR 2AM (CS
FORTHCOM NG)

DP: JOHNSON, HAWKER, P.WLSQON, SEATON
CLSON, SADDLER

NR: TUCK

AM TARR, FEI GE

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

Moved CSSSHB 4(RES) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( RES)

CS(RES) NT RECEI VED

RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

- 2- April 2, 2013



03/ 21/ 13 (H M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 26/ 13 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 26/ 13 (H Heard & Held

03/ 26/ 13 (H M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 27/ 13 (H FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 27/ 13 (H Heard & Held

03/ 27/ 13 (H M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 28/ 13 (H RLS TO CALENDAR PENDI NG REPCORT

03/ 28/ 13 (H) I N FI NANCE

03/ 28/ 13 (H FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 28/ 13 (H Heard & Held

03/ 28/ 13 (H M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 28/ 13 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 28/ 13 (H Heard & Held

03/ 28/ 13 (H M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 29/ 13 (H RLS TO CALENDAR PENDI NG REPCORT

03/ 29/ 13 (H) I N FI NANCE

03/ 29/ 13 (H FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 29/ 13 (H -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 29/ 13 (H) FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 29/ 13 (H Heard & Held

03/ 29/ 13 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 01/ 13 (H RLS TO CALENDAR PENDI NG REPORT

04/ 01/ 13 (H | N FI NANCE

04/ 01/ 13 (H FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 7DP 2NR 2AM

04/ 01/ 13 (H DP: HOLMES, MJNQZ, NEUVAN, THOWPSON,
T. WLSON, COSTELLO, AUSTERVAN

04/ 01/ 13 (H) NR: EDGVON, STOLTZE

04/ 01/ 13 (H AM  GARA, KAWASAKI

04/ 01/ 13 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 01/ 13 (H) VERSI ON:  CSSSHB 4( FI N)

04/ 01/ 13 (H FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 01/ 13 (H Bill Postponed To 4/1/13 @1:30 Meeting

04/ 01/ 13 (H) FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 01/ 13 (H Moved CSSSHB  4(FIN) Qut of Committee

04/ 01/ 13 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 02/ 13 (S) RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co-sponsor of HB 4.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT
Speaker of the House

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2013



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co- sponsor of HB 4.

RENA DELBRI DGE, staff to Representative Hawker

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of HB 4.

DARYL KLEPPI N, Conmercial Manager

Al aska Gasl i ne Devel opment Cor poration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinmony for HB 4

BONNI E HARRI' S, Assi stant Attorney Ceneral

Cvil Division

al, Gas and M ning

Al aska Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded | egal testinmony for HB 4.

CORI MLLS, Assistant Attorney General

Legi sl ative Liaison

G vil Division

Al aska Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided | egal testinony for HB 4.

JOHN HUTCHI NS, Assi stant Attorney General

Cvil Division

al, Gas and M ning

Al aska Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded | egal testinmony for HB 4.

STUART GOERI NG, Assistant Attorney General

Civil Division

Al aska Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded | egal testinmony for HB 4.

JOE DUBLER, Vice President and CFO

Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinony for HB 4

DAN FAUSKE, President

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- Apri

2, 2013



Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded supportive testinony for HB 4.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:21 PM

CHAIR CATHY GESSEL <called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to

order were Senators French, Dyson, McGuire and Chair G essel.

HB  4-1 N-STATE GASLI NE DEVELOPMENT CORP

3:32: 07 PM
CHAI R G ESSEL announced HB 4 to be up for consideration [CSSSHB
4(FIN), version 28-LS0021\I, was before the commttee].

3:33: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau,
Al aska, co-sponsor of HB 4, thanked the conmittee nenbers for
having the bill before the commttee in an expeditious manner
He stated that the commttee truly allowed the sponsors a fair
and open opportunity to present HB 4.

3:33:48 PM

SENATOR M CCI CHE joined the commttee.

3:33: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said HB 4 was a conplex bill and an

inportant piece of legislation. He said HB 4 would provide a
very inportant "box of tools" for the state to nove forward to
see Alaska's North Slope natural gas into the hands of Al askans,
both in Fairbanks and the entire Railbelt. He stated that once
gas was available, the limts were only restricted by the vision
of Alaska's entrepreneurs. He asserted that Al aska could not

realize the benefits from natural gas wuntil a pipeline was
built.
3:35:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau,
Al aska, co-sponsor of HB 4, thanked the commttee nenbers for

allowing the bill to come forward. He informed the conmittee
that the upcom ng presentations on HB 4 would address the bill's
workings and how it operated. He asserted that the bill's

critical issues had been addressed. He affirned that HB 4 was a
"box of tools" and continued Al aska down the path that the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2013



sponsors started a couple years back with HB 369. The Al aska
Gasline Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC) had acconplished the
tasks that were put before it and it was not just through the
hard work that he and Representative Hawker had put forth. He
commended the efforts made by Senator MQ@ire and others. He
said the collective vision was how to bring gas to Al askans. He
enphasi zed that it was inportant to look at all aspects, but
noted the statutes that were passed a nunber of years ago
presented Iimtations and the bill was a way to nove forward. He
noted that many attenpts had been nade over the last 30 or 40
years with a nunber of projects that promsed to bring gas to
Al askans and help drive down fuel <costs for Fairbanks, the
Rai | belt, and the Kenai Peninsula. He said HB 4 would ultimately
provide options for the rest of Alaska and help drive down
exor bitant energy costs in rural Al aska.

3:38: 35 PM
CHAI R d ESSEL announced that the committee woul d stand at ease.

3:40: 47 PM

RENA DELBRIDGE, staff to Representative M ke Hawker, Al aska
State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska, said she would review the
sectional analysis for HB 4.

3:41:12 PM

CHAI R G ESSEL announced that the commttee would stand at ease.
3:41:59 PM

M5. DELBRIDGE said it helped to talk about the bill by
segregating it into three sections that related to certain
concepts. She explained that nost of the bill could be separated

into three areas as foll ows:

1. Sections that established AGDC as a standalone state
corporation t hat gave it its authorities and
responsibilities: bonding power, its mssion, and its
charge to go forward. She added that standard boilerplate
t hi ngs were addressed that included neetings and m nutes.

2. Sections that try to resolve regulatory uncertainties and
the need to know upfront how a pipeline would be regul at ed
She said the legislation created a new regul ation chapter
under the Regulatory Conm ssion of Alaska (RCA) for in-
state natural gas pipeline carriers. She explained that the
sections were extensive and included RCA's regulatory
authority. She added that the ability to enpower contract
carriage was a change to the state's Right-of-Wy Leasing
Act, particularly through the covenants that were included

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2013



in that act relating to comon carriage. The bill would add
the ability to lease with promses to abide by the new
contract carrier covenants. She said relating to certainty
and regulatory issues, judicial review of state permtting,
| easing, and authorization decisions were addressed. The
sponsors believed that reasonable boundaries would be put
into place that provided an opportunity for Alaska to
chal  enge decisions and to have their voices heard, but
prohibit lawsuits that delayed or stalled a project during
the sensitive pipeline construction period.

3. Sections that address additional ways the state could help
facilitate the pipeline to keep rates down for Al askans.
I ncluded would be a waiver on state and |ocal property
taxes during construction and to call upon cooperation from
ot her state agencies to provide priority assistance.

IVS. DELBRIDGE said she would proceed wth the sectiona
anal ysis. Section 1 included findings and intent |anguage. She
said the section found that an AGDC pipeline was in the best
interest of the state and required for the public convenience
and necessity. The finding cane into play through the RCA when
they look at awarding a building permit or a certificate of
public convenience and necessity to a pipeline carrier. The
| egislature's finding and action in setting AGC out on the
m ssion supported the finding being nmade. The RCA would not be
required to nake a redundant finding by double checking that the
| egi slature's intent was as i ntended.

3:46:17 PM

She said the findings and intent |anguage also related to the
repositioning of AGDC from its current status as a subsidiary
corporation of the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC).
The bill would nove AGXC as an intact, standalone public
corporation of the state. She explained that it was on |[egal
gui dance that the legislative intent was nmade very clear that
AGDC woul d be dissolved and reinstated. She specified that AGDC
would be located under the Al aska Departnent of Comerce,
Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnment (DCCED) for administrative
purposes only. DCCED would help advance AGC s mssion and
provi de specific intent that the transfer would be treated as a
repositioning and not as a new entity creation. The intent and

findings also expressed the legislature's will that AGC woul d
procure services, labor, products, and Al askan resources from
Al aska busi nesses, Nati ve Cor por ati ons, and muni ci pa

organi zations when prices were conpetitive. AGC would, to the
extent possible, hire Al askans, establish hiring facilities, and

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2013



use the existing Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent
(DLWD) systens for training.

MS. DELBRI DGE said Section 2 was conform ng as AGDC would be its
own standal one state corporation and AHFC no |onger required the
ability to create a gas pipeline subsidiary.

She said Section 3 created the new corporation, providing the
statutory authority and duties. AGXC s l|location in DCCED would
be for adm nistrative purposes only; that clearly nmeant only for
the need to work a future potential appropriation request
through DCCED. There would not be regular oversight or
i nvol venent from DCCED. She explained that a seven nenber board
of directors would be created as the governing body. The
governor would appoint five public nenbers with specific areas
of expertise in natural gas pipeline construction, operations,
mar keti ng, finance, and | arge project nmanagenent.

3:48: 50 PM

She said the remaining two board nenbers would be comm ssioners
or heads of departnments. The governor would decide which
conmi ssi oner woul d be appointed to the board. She expl ained that
as long as the comm ssioners of revenue and natural resources
were signatories to a valid contract under AG A, they may not
serve. The public board nmenbers would serve staggered five year
terms, require legislative confirmation, be renoved at the
governor's pleasure, and vacancies would be filled in the sane
way. Board nenbers would receive $400 in conpensation per day,
an anount that was in-line with nost other state corporations.
The board would be required to nmeet on a regular basis, keep
m nutes, hire an executive director, and hire |egal counsel. The
corporation's personnel would be exenpt fromthe State Personne
Act. She said the section clearly spells out AGC s purpose in
advancing in-state natural gas pipelines, as described in AGC s
July 2011 project plan as foll ows:

e Miking gas and associated non-oil hydrocarbons, such as
propane, available as soon as possible to Fairbanks,
Sout hcentral, and other communities.

 Attenpt to develop projects that ship and deliver gas at
comercially reasonabl e rates.

She explained that as soon as AGC was given its powers and
duties they could determ ne the follow ng:

* Pipeline owership and operating structure;
e Plan finance, ownership, and pipeline system operations;

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2013



* Exercise the state's existing right of emnent domain i
needed, only wunder the sanme terns as the state itsel
required;

e Transfer or dispose of assets;

* (Operated as a contract carrier;

* Invest funds.

f
f

MS. DELBRI DGE expl ained that once the initial pipeline was |aid
out in accordance to the project plan, AGC would be required to
anal yze additional pot enti al lines that ~connect to nore
Al askans. She said the section required disclosure of open
season results and specified the foll ow ng:

« Conpany or entity nanmes that signed up
e How nuch capacity comm tnent each conpany or entity mnade;
* Length of individual contracts.

She said the section also related to confidentiality and
i nt eragency cooperation. Qther state agencies would assist AGDC
and give priority, except for requests made under AG A due to
existing prioritization. She explained that AGC was not to
duplicate the state's existing work, another way to try and
maxi m ze that value that the state was getting out of the
gasl i ne agency. She said AGC would be able to withhold certain
information that it generated confidentially and treat the
information as an asset for the state; AGC s tariff nodel,

field data, and route information would be considered assets.

She noted that once a pipeline was operational, the confidenti al

information would need to be disclosed as it may benefit other
Al askans. She specified that AGC would be able to sign
confidentiality agreenents with private entities in order to
conduct commercial transactions, negotiate shipping terns, and
consi der potenti al ownership nodel s. She not ed, per the
governor's request, intention to discuss with TransCanada and
ot her conpanies pursuing a |arge dianeter export pipeline about
the possibilities of project alignment. She said the section
allowed AGDC to create subsidiaries, create the in-state natura

gas pipeline fund, and direct nanagenent. She stated that AGDC s
operating budget would be subject to the Executive Budget Act,
but financing and bonding finances would be exenpt. She noted
that AGDC, in HB 369, was already exenpt from the State
Procurenent Code and the legislation would carry the exenption
over into AGDC s new corporate statutes. She said AGC woul d be
able to issue bonds that were linmted to their own backing. The
faith and credit of the state nmay not be pl edged.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 2, 2013



3:52: 55 PM
MS. DELBRI DGE sunmmari zed sections as foll ows:

e Section 4 reiterated the procurenent code exenption within
t he actual procurenent code;

» Sections 5 and 6 were conform ng;
e Section 7 included definitions;

e Sections 8, 9, and 10 were all conformng and related to
right-of-way |ease changes; those changes were made in
Section 11.

She explained that there were 14 covenants within the existing
state right-of-way |ease statute and a lessee had to agree to
abi de by those covenants. She detailed that all but three of the
14 covenants were very standard and would carry over to either
common or contract carriers. She said three covenants had very
strong common carrier |anguage. The sponsors retained the
princi pal behind the three covenants, but renoved the |anguage
that required common carriage and therefore enabled contract
carriage as an alternative.

She disclosed that Section 12 directed the Al aska Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR) to issue a state right-of-way |ease at
no cost to AGDC. She explained that AGC currently had a state
right-of-way |ease and was paying the state $180,000. The cost
could be rolled into a tariff and the sponsors believed the act
was another way the state could nmake sure the eventual cost of
gas fromthe pipeline was as | ow as possible for Al askans.

She summari zed sections as foll ows:

e Section 13 |imted the judicial review of state |ease
permts and ot her authorizations;

e Section 14 was the personal act exenption;

* Section 15 subjected AGC s officers and board to the
Public O ficial Financial Disclosure rules;

e Section 16 stated that if AGDC had information that was
allowed to keep confidential, that information was not
subject to release under the Public Records Act;

e Section 17 was conformng to the new RCA section

She said Section 18 was related to the new RCA section and acted
as an additional backstop for the state's public utilities. It
would allow utilities to be preapproved for contracts that they
m ght have, not for shipment on the pipeline, but related to. An
exanple would if a utility purchased gas that was shipped on the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- April 2, 2013



pipeline, or they stored gas and they had contracts for that,
they would be able to recover those costs before they sign those
contracts, that then relate to the contract soneone shipping the
gas was payi ng.

3:55: 25 PM

M5. DELBRIDGE noted that Sections 19 and 20 were conforming to
Section 21, which was a new chapter of state law. She said the
new regulatory framework applied to in-state natural gas
contract carrier pipelines. She said the bill's sponsors
believed that the regulatory framework was structured to provide
appropriate checks and balances to protect people that sign
contracts for gas shipped on the pipeline, the pipeline itself,
public utilities, and Al askan rate payers. She detailed that the
chapter had a nunmber of boilerplate, RCA authorizations that
were needed in order for the RCA to carry out the specifics as a
general overview. She said the section would require the RCA to
regul ate and oversee an in-state contract carrier gas pipeline
regarding permts, disputes about open season conduct or terns
of an expansion, and gas supply to utilities. She explained that
if a public utility was not receiving the gas it required for
sonme odd reason, malfunction, or dispute where public health and
safety was threatened, the RCA could step in and takeover to
make sure the public utilities get what they needed to protect
the public. She noted an exanple if Fairbanks was not receiving
gas in January. She explained that the section required the
foll owi ng for awardi ng pipeline service:

* Open seasons for awardi ng pipeline service;

e Certain elenments that a carrier would need to put forth
when they were noticing and having an open season;

e Defined the three ways that soneone could get pipeline
service: taking the initial tariff that the pipeline puts
out that was available to anybody, negotiate a rate, or
opting to sign a presubscription agreenment before an open
season that generates the same kind of precedent agreenent
t hat under goes RCA review,

e Carriers file an initial recourse tariff before signing
contracts with potential shippers;

* Revisions are approved by the RCA

She said in dealing wth recourse tariffs, the carrier would
need to provide all of their cost data to the RCA to verify that
their rates were in fact cost based. She explained that the RCA
would then ook to three very key elenents within the rates as
foll ows:

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- April 2, 2013



* Inportant levers for Alaskans in conjunction with pipeline
tariffs;

* Mike sure that the rate of return, capital structure, and
depreciation nmethod were reasonable as evidence by being
within a range of simlar pipeline findings by the RCA or
Federal Energy Regul atory Comm ssion (FERC)

* Weigh the risks of the pipeline.

M5. DELBRIDGE explained that a new pipeline would probably
generate a higher rate of return because it was riskier than a
pi peline expansion. She summarized that the RCA would review
recourse tariffs and grant approval or denial. Ongoing revisions
woul d be appropriate once a pipeline starts operations. The
carrier would be required to submt their current cost data to
the RCA for review on a tri-annual basis to ensure actual cost
data was support ed.

3:58: 57 PM

She said it was highly unlikely that a pipeline would earn a
rate of return in excess of what was allowed. However, there was
nothing that explicitly prohibited a higher rate of return and
some changes were made in the House to accommobdate that. If the
pi peline was earning a higher rate of return than the RCA had
said it could, the excess profit would be required to be put
into a segregated operating reserve account to help fund things
in other years when operations were not generating what was
needed. The segregated operating reserve account would be
allowed to grow until it reached 20 percent of the pipeline's
annual average operating cost. If extra profits were generated
beyond what was allowed, the noney would be used to immediately
pay down the rates that contractual shippers were paying. She
stated that once shippers in an open season were through the
presubscription agreement and sign a precedent agreenent, those
agreenents would go to the RCA for review. The standard of
review was whether or not those were just and reasonable. The
evi dence of the contract between two willing parties that were
unaffiliated, being just and reasonable was defined in HB 4 as
being at "arms length." The principal was that if two people,
two entities were willing to settle on a fair price anongst
them and there was no fraud or duress, and they were not
affiliated, then that was a reasonable price. If the parties
were affiliated, the bill required a nuch deeper |evel of review
and extra scrutiny. She said at the RCA a pipeline would need
to go out and get a Certificate of Public Convenience or
Necessity (CPCN), simlar to a building permit for pipelines.
The RCA required a CPCN for nost infrastructures that they

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- April 2, 2013



regulated and for pipelines it was an inportant marker as to
whether or not an applicant had what was needed in place to
provi de the service that the RCA was granting them the authority
to provide. She said there were a few special findings made for
an ACDC applicant for a CPCN in HB 4. She reiterated Section 1
regarding findings and intent, finding a pipeline that AGDC does
as required by the public convenience and necessity, a finding
that was typically nade by the RCA, would be made through the
bill for the RCA. She asserted that the legislature had created
AGDC to do pipelines, equipped it wth a strong governing
structure, and presumably funded the corporation to do its jobs.
She explained that the bill nmade the finding for the RCA that
AGDC was managerially and financially fit, willing, and able to
provide said service. She summarized that the RCA, for an AGDC
pi peline, would have to determne the technical fitness and
ability of AGC to carry out the service and do the pipeline.
For a non-AGDC applicant, they would have to go through the
entire findings process.

4:02:13 PM
MS. DELBRI DGE sunmmari zed sections as foll ows:

e Section 22 addressed property tax exenption, if AGC owned
or financed any part of a pipeline project, state and | ocal
property taxes woul d be exenpt during construction.

e Section 23 was a rather length repealer. Wen HB 369
passed, that becane AS 38.34, nmuch of that statute
transitioned into AGDC s corporate structure and sone parts
were repealed. The repealer would also repeal the Al aska
Nat ural Gas Devel opnment Aut hority (ANGDA)

e Section 24 was an additional repealer related to the
ANGDA' s repeal .

e Section 25 expressed transition |anguage and |egislative
intent. AGDC already had the right-of-way |ease from the
state and the intent was <clearly there that iif the
| egi slature changed the covenants to allow contract
carriage; the right-of-way |ease would be anended to
reflect that. The intent was also clear that the
| egi sl ature expects the governor to appoint his new board
of directors for AGC within 90 days. The intent was that
the repositioning of AGDC would not interfere with or delay
AGDC s work. AHFC would remain intact as the |eadership of
AGDC until the new board was up and runni ng. AHFC and DCCED
shoul d provide all possible assistance to AGDC s new board
as it gets up and running in order to not add to delay in
wor K.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- April 2, 2013



e Section 26 was revisor's instructions.
e Section 27 was an i mmedi ate effective date.

M5. DELBRIDGE said the legislator in 2010 passed HB 369 and
charged AGDC with the mssion of getting Alaska gas to Al askans
that was clean, reliable, and reasonably priced. She remarked
that electric and hone heating costs were very high in parts of
the state. She noted that costs were increasing and security was
now chal | enged. She enphasized that gas to Al askans would nean
econoni ¢ and industrial devel opnment for the state.

4:05:13 PM

She said the specific goals of HB 369 were to build a team under
AHFC s | eadership and to consolidate the gas pipeline work that
the state had done to date on an in-state option. She expl ai ned
that the team was to fill in the gaps, figure out what was
mssing in order to actually get a pipeline project going,
figure what the optimal route was that would benefit the
greatest nunber of Alaskans, and then report back to the
| egislature with a plan on how to get that done. She said ACGDC
delivered the report in July 2011, and found that an in-state
gas pipeline, even with the size constraints put forth under the
Al aska Gasline Inducenment Act (AG A of 500 mllion cubic feet
per day (500 MCFD), was actually possible. AGDC |ooked at the

pot enti al price of gas to customers in Fairbanks and
Sout hcentral. The findings showed Fairbanks' cost could be
significantly | ower and Sout hcentral 's rates woul d be

conpetitive at the point in time the pipeline arrived.
SENATOR FRENCH asked what the initial price estimtes were.

4:06:41 PM

DARYL KLEPPIN, Conmercial Manager, Alaska Gasline Devel opnent
Cor poration, Anchorage, Al aska, asked if the Senator's question
was in reference to the tariff.

SENATOR FRENCH replied no. He said he was referring to M.
Del bridge's reference to the fact that gas would be cheaper in
Fai rbanks and conpetitive in Anchorage. He asked what the all-in
consuner price was.

MR. KLEPPIN replied that the revised 2012 project plan's tariffs
at the Fairbanks city gate were between $4.25 and $6.00. He
noted that the purchase price for North Slope gas was assuned to
be $2.00 with a local distribution charge of $2.00. He said all-
in, burner-tip price in Fairbanks was between $8.25 and $10. 00.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- April 2, 2013



The estimated burner-tip price in Anchorage was between $9.00
and $11. 25.

SENATOR FRENCH asked to clarify that the estinmate was for a 500
MCFD | i ne, not a 250 MCFD | i ne.

MR. KLEPPI N answer ed yes.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what the nunmbers would be for a 250 MCED
i ne.

MR. KLEPPIN replied that assumng the same capital cost, the
tariffs would be roughly twice as nuch. He noted that redoing
pipeline sizing with capital changes to conpute a |ean gas
scenari o had not been cal cul at ed.

4:09: 55 PM

M5. DELBRIDGE said part of the 2011 Project Plan that was the
inpetus for legislation to encourage AGDC advancenent was to
provide AGDC with the ability to nake firm long term contracts
for the pipeline's capacity in order to support financing. She
explained that certain legislative action would be required to
provide AGDC with the authority to do the foll ow ng:

» Determ ne pipeline ownership structure;

 Wirk confidentially with private sector partners;
* (Operate as a contract carrier

» Decide rates and tariff terns.

She said AGDC further recommended the following to the state:

e Consider waiving previously specified property taxes and
state | and | ease fees;

e Be provided with sufficient funding in order to carry out
AGDC s mssion it was charges with, including the creation
of a pipeline fund that would allow AGDC to draw on to pay
pi peline contracts with engineering, design, and comerci al
wor k conpani es;

e Limtation on judicial review that was simlarly provided
for both the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS) and AQ A

She explained that HB 4 was generated from a culmnation of
previously stated needs with additional ways the bill's sponsors
believed the state m ght be able to support. She said HB 4 would
give further direction to AGC by transferring from the existing
statute the joint in-state gasline developnent subsidiary

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- April 2, 2013



provisions that were in HB 369 and nove them over to the new
i ndependent AGDC. She asserted that HB 4 would provide the
framework for AGDC to serve as Alaska's natural gas pipeline
corporation. The sponsors made sure that HB 4 woul d enpower AGDC
to not just do the pipeline as described in their project plan

but to have the ability to do other pipelines that were
commercially reasonable and beneficial to Al askans. She said HB

4 wuld mximze the state's efforts in gas pipeline
devel opnent, resolves regqulatory uncertainties, supports future
devel opnent of Al aska' s resour ces, i ncl udes AGDC s

recommendati ons, and mai ntai ns the nomentum

M5. DELBRI DGE noted the foll owi ng energy chal |l enges:

 Sout hcentral gas supply and <costs were increasingly
uncertai n;

 Fairbanks' energy costs were as high as ever;
e Fairbanks' significant air quality problens.

She infornmed the committee that AGDC s estinmated 2.5 percent
inflation rate would equate to $200 mllion bei ng added annual |y
to the project's cost. She said there was continued expectation
for the state to find ways to offset high energy costs and
therefore the sooner the better if there was in fact a proposed
solution on the table.

She said specifically under HB 4 that AGDC woul d keep working on
the in-state pipeline as described in the project plan

Sufficient shipper support would be required as evidenced by the
long term contracts signed in an open season to pipeline
financing. She said should HB 4 pass during the current session
wi th adequate funding, the target date for gas flow ng would be
in 2019. She affirned that AGDC would work with TransCanada and
the North Slope producers to see if in fact, as the governor
requested, potential alignment for the two projects. She noted
that uncertainty remained for alignnent as there had not been a
devel opnment conmi t ment.

4:13: 32 PM

SENATOR FRENCH asked if there were aspects of the bill that
directed the two projects to talk, comunicate, and try to
nmer ge.

M5. DELBRI DGE answered that there was no specific provision. She

pointed out that the bill would provide the ability to sign
confidentiality agreenents that would be needed in order to

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- April 2, 2013



proceed. She inferred that AGDC had been asked to pursue
al i gnnent conversations by the governor's recent public renarks.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that the provisions were philosophica
but not statutory.

MS. DELBRI DGE answer ed correct.

4:14:13 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE pointed out that there had been previous bills
in the Senate and the House. The Senate bill contained the
| anguage that said the AGA line and the AGDC line would be
conpati ble and not conpetitive. She explained that the bill was

ultimately nmerged into HB 369. She asked if adding Iine-
conpatibility as a friendly amendnment should be carried forward.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that she was sure the bill's sponsors
woul d be happy to discuss the topic with Senator MGQ@iire. She
explained that the sponsors believed that the conpatibility
spirit carried on. She remarked that nothing in HB 4 prohibited,
bl ocked, or detours another project from going forward. She
asserted that ACGDC was tasked very clearly with getting gas to
Al askans in Fairbanks, Southcentral, and other comunities as
possible at the |owest possible rates. She stated that if there
was another project opportunity on the table, AGC would have
the mssion and be able to anmend what they were doing in order
to pursue an alignnent opportunity that generated the greatest
benefits to Al askans.

She nentioned that under HB 4, AGDC would also be prepared to
participate in other frameworks, including a possible Lower 48
pi peline. She said the Lower 48 pipeline was not currently being
pursued, but AGC would be able to tailor its efforts to a spur-
line. She noted that once the mainline was conplete, AGC would
eval uate other pipeline opportunities that could connect other
communities, industrial developnents, or another standal one
pipeline in other areas of the state.

4:16: 02 PM

JOE DUBLER, Vice President, Chief Financial Oficer, Al aska
Gasline Devel opnent Corporation, Anchorage, Al aska, addressed
Senator French's question and stated that AGX sees the
formation of the board containing two conm ssioners and five
menbers of the public appointed by the governor to be a very
strong governing body that would address the issues that Senator
French had raised as far as aligning the two projects. He said

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- April 2, 2013



the governor's appointed seven nenber board would set the
direction for AGDC and | ead the corporation.

M5. DELBRIDGE reiterated that Section 3 would establish AGC as
Al aska's gas pipeline corporation. She explained that HB 4 woul d
nmove AGDC fromits present |ocation as a subsidiary of AHFC to a
st andal one corporation |ocated under ACCED. She specified that
AGDC s | ocation under ACCED would be for adm nistrative purposes
only. She addressed the AGDC governing board and noted that the
House Finance Conmittee added the two conmssioners to the
board. She explained that the bill's sponsors that adding the
two conmm ssioners was a strong step to greater AGDC
accountability to Alaskans in their broader interests in
pi pel i ne devel opnent.

4:17: 31 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked to confirm that the public nenbers of the
AGDC board woul d be serving in a part-tinme capacity.

MS. DELBRI DGE answered that the public nenbers could have a job
and serve as a part-tine board nenber. She explained that the
public nenbers may also be retired experts in their fields and
noted that there were quite a few different possibilities. She
noted the public board nenbers would be required to have
expertise in natural gas pipeline marketing, oper at i ons,
devel opnent, general finance, or |arge project nanagenent.

SENATOR FRENCH asked where one would go in Alaska to find
someone t hat has experience in nat ur al gas pi peline
construction. He noted that there had only been five or six
|arge projects done in the state's history. He asserted that it
was a fairly narrow pool of people to choose from and noted nany
may be currently enployed in the industry. He said there would
be many fascinating questions about whether the state could
actually pull people into the AGC board and ask for their
servi ce when they have fulltinme day jobs.

M5. DELBRI DGE answered that sone AGDC board candi dates may have
gained their experience in certain fields working elsewhere and
have returned to Al aska. She agreed that sone individuals m ght
be in industry and m ght decide there was an opportunity to be a
part of something bigger for the state. She said the governor
woul d have to deal wi th candi date backgrounds when he nakes the
AGDC board appointnments. She declared that the sponsors firmy
believed that there were many Al askans that had trenendous
experience in a nunber of gas pipeline related fields.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 2, 2013



4:19: 57 PM

SENATOR FRENCH surm sed that should HB 4 be passed, the earliest
the AGDC board could start functioning would be after the
| egi sl ative approval process for the 2014 session. He asked if
the appointed AGDC board nenbers could neet prior to approval
simlar to the Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane and other
boards that were allowed to neet before being approved.

V5. DELBRI DGE answered yes.

SENATOR FRENCH responded that the appointed board nenbers could
be taking official action on major questions that were presented
before the legislature had a chance to respond. He noted a
scenario where a relationship could be too close for a certain
type of deci sion.

MS. DELBRI DGE answered that his concerns were acknow edged. She
stated that the sponsors believed that the governor would be
responsible in making the AGC board appointnments nuch as he
does with nost of his other appointnents and be cogni zant of the
potential conflicts or issues that wuld cone up in a
confirmation hearing.

She said HB 4 provided very clear statutory abilities to AGXC s
corporate functions. She reiterated that AGDC could enter into
ownership and operating partnerships. AGC nay be a part-owner,
whol e-owner, non-owner, but AGDC expected to partner with a
pi peline conpany to build and operate the pipeline. She asserted
that AGDC had the ability under HB 4 to make ownershi p deci sions
in the best interests of getting gas to Al askans at the | owest
possi bl e rates.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if AGC could reach out and contract with
TransCanada to build the gas pipeline.

M5. DELBRIDGE answered correct. She said retaining flexibility
for AGC was the sponsors' intent and not prescribing how
precisely things had to work realizing that there were many
eventualities and potential outconmes over the course of the next
few years. She said a corporation needs to be able to handl e,
needs to be agile and flexible and responsive to what 1is
happeni ng.

4:22:40 PM

She said AGC also had the ability to create subsidiaries. She
expl ai ned that one of the potential subsidiaries that AGC nmay
create would be a very comon thing for a pipeline carrier to do

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- April 2, 2013



which was to create a subsidiary that was a gas marketer or
aggregator. She detailed that a gas marketer would not nean
soneone that goes out and tries to tell other people how great
the gas was and they should buy it, not froma public relations
standpoi nt, but from an aggregator standpoint. She remarked that
the subsidiary mght purchase gas at the beginning of the
pi peline, ship it through pipeline, and then sell it to severa

custonmers that may not have the credit worthiness to actually
sign long term shipping commtnents on their own or that
otherwise nay want sonme greater flexibility than the long term
contracts would provide. She noted that it was very comon for
transportation pi pel i nes to have mar ket i ng subsi di ary
cor por at i ons.

M5. DELBRIDGE said AGDC could also issue revenue bonds. She
expl ained that the revenue bonds would be limted to AGDC s own
backing and may not pledge the faith and credit of the state.
She disclosed that the bonding part of AGC s legislation
included the ability to create a capital reserved fund that was
backed by the noral obligation of state. She pointed out that
the noral obligation provision would only be invoked after AGDC
came back to the legislature in the future for a |aw expressly
allowing them to go and use a capital reserve fund that was
backed by the noral obligation of the state. She set forth that
AGDC may or may not need to create a capital reserve fund. She
said the reserve fund would allow AGDC to finalize the nunbers
and bring the legislature the hard and fast facts behind the
need and have the legislature nake the determ nation at that
point in tine.

SENATOR FRENCH stated that he knew the bonding authority and
capital reserve fund was a subject of a lot of discussion in the
House. He asked if specific page and section references.

M5. DELBRI DGE responded that page 16 was the bonding authority
and the capital reserve fund was on page 20. She specified that
the capital reserve fund had |anguage that required expressed
| egi sl ative authorization for its use between pages 17 and 23.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that he recalled reading HB 4 for the
first time and was shocked to see a sentence that stated, "The
enactment of the section does not express that authorization."
He stated that he did not know if that had ever been used before
in a statute, but thought the sentence was unusual, interesting,
and good.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 2, 2013



M5. DELBRIDGE stated that AGDC would be able to enter into
confidentiality agreenents. She explained that confidentiality
agreenents were needed in order to use with potential pipeline
shi ppers, ownership partners, operating partners, and people
that you go to finance a pipeline through bond issuances. AGDC
woul d generate a lot of information on its own using the state's
nmoney. She explained that the information would be an asset of
the state, provided that the information was not released
publically and went towards pipeline devel opnment.

4:25:28 PM

She said an exanple would be AGC s tariff nodels where
information would be derived from field studies and route data
coll ection. She explained that HB 4 would allow AGDC to keep the
tariff nodels confidential and be considered an asset of the
state that should be protected while it was a value. She noted
that once a pipeline was operational, the tariff nodels would
have less value from a confidentiality standpoint and
potentially could be sonething that other Alaskans find interest
in for right-of-way purposes. She infornmed the commttee that
legislation would call on AGC to release its confidential
information after that point in tinme, except for anything that
woul d hurt the state's econom c interest.

She said HB 4 would allow AGDC to exercise the state's existing
power of emnent domain. She explained that the state allowed
emnent domain to be issued for natural gas pipeline. She
enphasi zed that em nent domain was a l|last resort once good faith
negoti ati ons could be denonstrated to have unfortunately failed.
She detailed that the process would go through a court system
with the entity being required to supply fair conpensation to
the property owner in conjunction with the taking under em nent
domai n.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the Alaska Railroad Corporation (ARC
had em nent domai n.

V5. DELBRI DGE replied that she would have to follow up. She said
she believed ARC had em nent donmain, but noted that the Knik Arm
Bridge and Toll Authority (KABATA) had em nent domain.

SENATOR FRENCH confirnmed that KABATA had em nent domain. He
asked if there were any ot hers besides ARC and KABATA.

M5. DELBRI DGE responded that M. Dubler nentioned that AHFC had
em nent domai n.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- April 2, 2013



SENATOR FRENCH asked if AHFC had ever used eninent domain. He
noted a reply from the gallery that AHFC had not used em nent
domai n.

CHAIR G ESSEL asked if any of the attorney generals that m ght
be online could answer Senator French's question about em nent
domai n.

SENATOR FRENCH announced that he knew KABATA had it and trusted
M. Dubler to know that AHFC had it. He stated that his only
guestion was if ARC had em nent domai n.

4:27:32 PM

BONNI E HARRI S, Assistant Attorney General, Gvil Dvision, Ql,
Gas and Mning, Al aska Departnment of Law, Anchorage, Al aska,
stated that she did not know if ARC had ever wused em nent
domai n.

SENATOR M CCI CHE asked to be directed to the section that talks
about the specific confidential information and when it becones
public after operation of a pipeline.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that the ability to keep information
confidential was on pages 10, 11 and 13, lines 4 through 7. She
said page 13 was the part that called on the project once
operational to release certain infornmation.

SENATOR M CCICHE stated that confidentiality agreenents were
important and noted that sone Al askans were concerned. He
remar ked that sonmething different about HB 4 was that AGDC woul d
essentially be operating as a state corporation. He said
confidentiality agreenments were very typical in pipeline
projects and inportant in the duty of negotiating. He remarked
that the pipeline was not a secret project and confidentiality
agreenents were just the way it was done. He asserted that what
was unusual was that the information would beconme public
aft er war ds.

M5. DELBRI DGE concurred with Senator Mcciche. She said it was
very clear that AGC s information was self-generated. She
explained that confidentiality agreenents with another entity
were going to determ ne whether or not the information that was
protected between a private party and AGC could ever be
rel eased. She inforned the commttee that releasing confidential
information would depend on the entity and what kind of
informati on was discussed. She said the intent of the sponsors
was to make sure that the private sector was willing to engage

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- April 2, 2013



with AGDC. If there was any possibility that a judge mght cone
in at sone point and decide that certain information should have
been released and was not, then there would be a very serious
risk that the private sector would never be engaged wth. She
noted conversely that information that the state had paid for to
be developed as an asset mght benefit other Al askans and was
very inportant to be nmade available to the public.

SENATOR FRENCH stated that he would have a couple of questions
for the Al aska Departnent of Law (DOL) about how this would work
and who would be nmaking decisions, who would be review ng
t hi ngs, and what actions nmight happen in court under a judge's
determ nation versus the determ nations made by the corporation
with respect to what was confidential and what was not.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that the DOL had worked very closely with
the sponsors on the bill's language and she noted Cori MIlls
m ght be able to discuss the topic.

4:31: 06 PM

CORI MLLS, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legislative Liaison,
Civil Division, Al aska Departnent of Law, Juneau, Al aska, stated
that she was avail able to answer questi ons.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what woul d happen if soneone filed a public
records request to see confidential gas pipeline information
that was in the hands of AGDC and AGDC sai d no.

M5. MLLS replied that in a typical process and the way it was
outlined in the bill, the confidentiality provisions make it so
that the information was not subject to Al aska's Public Records
Act. Unlike other information where it may just be exenpt from
di scl osure under certain circunstances and then a privilege |og
woul d be provided, AGC s confidential information would not be
subject to the Public Records Act and they would provide sone
sort of denial that the information did not fall wunder the
Public Records Act. She said in the noted case, it would
probably then be a court challenge to find out if in fact the
information properly falls under the confidentiality provisions.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if that was how it worked where a judge
reviewed the confidential information and determ ned that the
informati on was indeed confidential under the statute, or would
it just not be turned over to a judge for his or her review

M5. MLLS replied that she could not say for sure what the
procedures would be. She surm sed that |ike other public records

SENATE RES COW TTEE -23- April 2, 2013



i ssues, a judge would probably review the confidential
information "in canera" so that it was not disclosed and a
decision would be nade. She said the confidential information
woul d not necessarily be shown to the judge unless the judge
deci ded he needed to see it, then that woul d occur.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that his safety-valve was that at sone
point a judicial officer would review the material and sort of
confirm that the confidential information was what was neant by
the language in the statute to be covered and not neant to be
di scl osed, because it was possible that AGDC in the future could
take a far nore expansive view of its confidentiality provisions
then what we were trying to wite down here today.

M5. MLLS responded that was their understanding of how this
woul d functi on.

4:33:46 PM

JOHN HUTCHI NS, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Cvil Division, G,
Gas and Mning, Alaska Departnent of Law, Juneau, Al aska,
replied that if there were a lawsuit challenge in the adequacy
of soneone's response to the public records request, there would

be a typical litigation discovery. He explained that if there
was a discovery, the judge would have the nornmal powers of a
judge in civil litigation to review materials and determ ne

whet her they were in fact confidential or not.

4:34:29 PM

M5. DELBRIDGE pointed out that it was on the recomendati on of
DOL that confidentiality be fully separated fromthe records act
i nstead of subject to the |ogs and what not.

SENATOR M CCICHE asked if AS 40.25 was information that was
avai |l abl e for public records requests.

MR. HUTCHINS answered yes. He explained that AS 40.25 was the
Public Records Act.

SENATOR FRENCH asked on the day the pipeline becones
operational, wuld there be anything left that was stil
confidential or does everything suddenly becone inspectabl e.

MR. HUTCHINS answered that probably the biggest category of

things that still would be confidential was information obtained
t hrough confidentiality agreenents.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 2, 2013



SENATOR FRENCH asked what would suddenly be available for
i nspection and what would still be kept secret.

MR. HUTCHI NS replied that principally what was kept secret was
information that was devel oped by the corporation itself in the
process of studying and constructing the pipeline. Wat was
still kept secret would be information that was provided by
third parties pursuant to a confidentiality agreenent.

SENATOR FRENCH responded that he m sunderstood. He asked if the
first part was now suddenly avail abl e.

MR. HUTCHI NS answered yes.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that with all of the background work the
corporation did was now going to be available, what was not
avai l able were trade secrets or materials that were turned over
by oil conpanies or gas shipping conpanies that were filed under
a confidentiality agreenent.

MR. HUTCHINS answered yes. He explained that the statute did
describe the previously described circunstances on page 13,
ri ght bel ow subpar agraphs one and two.

4:36:57 PM

SENATOR FRENCH asked to verify that trade secrets or materials
that were turned over under a confidentiality agreenent would be
kept secret.

MR. HUTCHI NS answer ed yes.
SENATOR FRENCH read from page 13 as foll ows:

| f it was det er m ned t hat mai nt ai ni ng t he
confidentiality was necessary, protect the economc
interest, the corporation, disclosure would violate
anot her provision of state law, fair law in terns of
the confidentiality agreenent.

He stated that since the economic interest of the corporation
was building an in-state gas pipeline, he asked for an exanple
of something that would still be hidden. He reiterated that the
econonmc interest of the <corporation was to build a gas
pi pel i ne.

MR. HUTCHINS replied that he was probably not close enough to
t he busi ness of pipeline construction to give exanpl es.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -25- April 2, 2013



M5. DELBRIDGE replied that she believed if AGDC devel oped a
proprietary tariff nodel that they anticipated using on a future
pipeline in a relatively near sense; that nmay be sonething that
had commercial value that AGC would |ike to protect and nove
forward. She said alternatively, if AGC had collected data
along the right-of-way and soneone wanted to put a cellphone
tower on a segnent of the right-of-way and would benefit from
having that information, and AGDC no |longer considered it a
proprietary asset because they had the right-of-way, then the
intent was to nmake sure that that kind of information was
di scl osed so that Al askans could use it.

4:38: 22 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE noted one of the issues with the pipeline's
earlier bills was maintaining the legality of keeping below the
500 MCFD threshold while the sole-source contract to AG A was
still in play. She asked if the sponsors felt satisfied with HB
4 rmoving forward and the independence of AGDC that the state
could do its due diligence. She noted that there would be two
commi ssioners on the board itself. She inquired if the sponsors
felt confortable that DOL was able to provide enough oversight
in nonitoring the activities of AGC as a quasi-public
corporation in how they would <carry out their business
activities, their open seasons in nmaking firm transportation
offers, their conpliance with the 500 MCFD limt, and the
possi ble result in treble damages.

M5. HARRIS replied that she did know a | ot about AG@ A, but noted
that regulating and nmonitoring was nore of a question for the
regul atory provisions that would be RCA. She explained that DCL
woul d not nonitor the AGDC pipeline to see if it was violating
the AGA 500 MCFD Iimt.

4:40: 27 PM

STUART GOERI NG Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Cvil D vision,
Al aska Departnment of Law, Anchorage, Al aska, announced that he
represented and advised the RCA, but noted that he was speaking
to the commttee in his capacity as an assistant attorney
general. He explained that the RCA had no authority under either
existing law or under the proposed AS 42.08 Contract Pipeline
Carrier Statute, to nonitor or investigate conpliance with |aws
outside of the scope of the regulatory statutes which would be
AS 42.05, AS 42.06, and the proposed AS 42.08. He explained that
the RCA does actually issue pipeline certificates that list a
certificated capacity and that was dependent wupon what the
applicant asks for. He explained that unless soneone files a

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 26- April 2, 2013



conplaint, you would not typically see any kind of field
investigation to verify that that certificate limtation was
bei ng observed.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if M. Delbridge had an answer to the
question that proves exactly her point, that the RCA would not
be enforcing the 500 MCFD |imt. She enphasized that she wanted
to be clear about her previous statenent. She stated that her
second point pertained to the two projects as either nerging or
not nerging. She comented that she was confortable with either
answers and that was why she supported the bill. She asserted
that the legislature had to be careful to not put the state in
| egal jeopardy of treble damages. She said she wanted to be
car ef ul and have soneone from Attorney General's office
follownng AGC as a quasi-public corporation in their
activities. She noted that Dan Fauske had that "hel ping hand" in
order to be clear that he did not overstep his boundaries and
enphasi ze that AGC would not exceed 500 MCFD. She reiterated
her intent for clarity regarding not putting the state in |ega
| eopar dy.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that the Senator had an excell ent question
and it was one that the sponsors worked hard on to bal ance the
conpeting issues. She stated that there were no less than four
places in the legislation that says AGC could not do a pipeline
or expand a pipeline that would put the state in violation of
AG A; that was on AGDC s corporate mssion, Section 3, page 10,
lines 9-12. She addressed the Right-of-Way Leasing Act covenant
section that specified the state's issuance through DNR of a
right-of-way lease required that AGDC may not, the |essee,
violate AGA with the project design; page 31, |ines 26-30. She
referred to the regulatory section that two places required
expansions on comercially reasonable terns and affirned that
expansions may not result in a violation of AG A She explained
that the intent was to | ook out for the future contingencies by
requiring an expansion on comercially reasonable terns w thout
causing sonething to be in violation. She said the Legislative
Affairs Agency (LAA) worked very hard with DOL and AGDC on how
to actually word the Ilanguage in the bill regarding AdQA
conpl i ance.

4:44: 33 PM

She said she would read the |anguage to the conmittee from page
49, line 11. She explained that the |anguage was matched up from
the bill's four instances as foll ows:

SENATE RES COW TTEE -27- April 2, 2013



You cannot cause the pipeline to be a conpeting
nat ur al gas pipeline project as defined in AS
43.94.40, which is AGA unless the project for which
a license is issued under AS 43.90, AG A, has been
abandoned, or is no |longer receiving the inducenents
in AG A

V5. DELBRI DGE expl ained that the previously stated |anguage was
i nportant because the AGQ A statute mght still be on the book

but you may not have a valid licensee and if you do not have a
valid licensee, then it was LAA' s opinion that the state was not
going to be violating a Ilicense that prohibits them from
supporting a project that conpetes.

She said she would be happy to supply the commttee with LAA' s
opinion related to AG A parts of it dealt with the concept that
the state may not support a project designed to carry nore than
the AGQA |imt. She enphasized that AGDC was clear that they
were statutorily not to design a project that would put themin
potential violation of AG A She summarized that the sponsors,
DOL and AGDC s attorneys felt very confortable with the | anguage
in the bill

SENATOR MCGUI RE appreciated M. Delbridge' s response and noted
that it answered her first question. She stated that there was
absolutely no need to put the | anguage that was contained in the

merger of SB 287 and HB 369 in the bill that says that any
project should be conpatible and not conpetitive because it was
stated even nore clearly on page 49, lines 11-13, and other

parts as well.

4:46: 40 PM

She noted that AGDC s board would be a separate corporation and
the state would be "letting go of the reins."” She asked at what
poi nt the AGDC board would have the ability to let go due to the
recognition that the Al aska Pipeline Project (APP) was not
conpatible due to various constraints and sinply nove forward
with the plan that was crafted by M. Fauske and his team She
said she wanted AGDC to continue nerger consideration. She
stated that Al askans would |ove to see the value, even if we did
not vote for AG A, for the fair value of the $500 million to be
realized and certainly to have nore from a |arger pipeline. She
recogni zed that there were tineline considerations and asked how
AGDC woul d be able to nove forward.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that AGC s purpose was to continue
advancing the line as described in their project plan. She

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 28- April 2, 2013



explained the project's plan was to go with an open season next
year and conclude the end of 2014 or 2015. She specified that at
the end of open season, AGC would have precedent agreenents
with shipping comrtnents on the table and at that point AGDC
woul d probably need to nake sone choices. She said the sponsors’
point of view had repeatedly been stated that an in-state
pi peline needed to continue. She explained that the sponsors
realized that a nmerged or larger project could be even nore
beneficial, but the sponsors had not seen any firm commtnents
to date. She noted that the sponsors had repeatedly stated that
they were not willing to wait forever. AGDC was on a strong
timeline and either APP was clearly going forward or the
alternative was getting Alaska gas to Alaskans in addition to
providing an export opportunity for large volunmes to other
markets in the future when the producers decide that was an
option they would want to pursue.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if the aggressive tinelines were the
tinmelines that were in the original bill that was nerged and
sent forward, but nodified and updat ed.

V5. DELBRI DGE answered that she believed AGDC tried very hard to
neet the tinmelines. She explained that AGDC found out very
quickly that if they allowed a project to be tineline or
schedul e driven, the project would be placed at real risk froma
| arge project nanagenent prospective. AGC appreciated the
| egi sl ature's sense of urgency, but wanted to make sure that it
was also done with the greatest chance of success as possible.
When AGDC issued their project plan in July 2011, they did anend
the date and were candid about the fact that unfortunately there
was not a way to be getting gas to Alaskan at that original
timeframe. She stated that AGC was quite confident that through
their use of stage-gated approaches and | arge project expertise,
they would be able to deliver gas starting in 2019.

4:50: 31 PM
She said Senator MGuire pointed out a desire to realize the
value of the half billion dollars that the state commtted to

its licensee under AG A She stated that her understanding was
that a large part of the work that the state had reinbursed
TransCanada to date was focused on the northern section of the
route. She noted that the initial consideration was on a line to
the Lower 48 and it would veer off from where the AGDC pipeline
woul d be. Therefore a lot of TransCanada's work on a piece of
the pipeline route would be applicable to another project as
well. She said if AGDC was able to enter into confidential
agreenents and share information, it was the sponsors' hope that

SENATE RES COW TTEE -29- April 2, 2013



TransCanada and others would be supportive in sharing the air
quality data or whatever with AGDC. She said M. Dublar could
fill the commttee in on the extent of any discussions to date.
She explained that the sponsors also did not want to see the
state chalking up the investnent as a |oss and believed that the
projects could be very conpati ble and | everage each ot her.

4:51:48 PM

M5. DELBRI DGE continued on page 11 and said AGC under HB 4
woul d be exenpt for the State Procurenent Code. She asserted
that AGDC believed that following the State Procurenent Code
procedures would add significant tine and cost to its process

She noted that HB 369 did exenpt AHFC s subsidiary for gaslines
from the State Procurenent Code, so HB 4 wuld be a
repositioning of the provision. She said AGC would be exenpt
fromthe Alaska's State Personnel Act and noted the anticipation
to hire a great nunber of people through contracts for project-
specific tine bounded work. She noted that AGDC woul d need to be
flexible and have the greatest ability to get the expertise
onboard as soon as they need it.

SENATOR FRENCH stated that the salaries for sonme of the AGDC
enpl oyees had been in the public eye recently because they were
fairly high. He asked what oversight the |egislature would have
if AGDC continued down the path of highly rewarding enpl oynent
contracts.

M5. DELBRIDGE asked that M. Dubler cone forward to respond
about the AGDC salaries. She said she believed generally
speaking that AGDC would have the sane level oversight it
currently had as a subsidiary of AHFC. She explained that AGDC
was part of a public corporation of the state and was governed
by a board that was appointed by the governor, including
commi ssioners that always retained sone |evel of oversight into
t hat .

4:53:29 PM

MR. DUBLER replied that the salaries Senator French noted were
indicative of the market salary for specific types of enployees
and one of the reasons AGDC was | ooking for exenptions fromthe
state Procurenent Code. He explained that going out to find a
candidate that could work on engineering or run an engineering
plan for a major facility on the North Slope to process natura
gas, the |ow bidder probably would not be one's first or w sest
choice. He stated that candidates share their conpensation
| evel s and negoti ations proceed fromthat point. He noted com ng
from a state-background and was shocked when he first saw sone

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 30- April 2, 2013



of the rates, but conceded that was what the industry
conpensation levels were. He said an intention to hire the best
in order to make sure the pipeline project noved forward neant
conpeting with ExxonMobil, BP, and ConocoPhilli ps.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how much of the salaries were going to be
paid with state noney, how nuch would be paid eventually wth
the pipeline's proceeds, where the breaking point was, and how
folks who eventually buy the gas would benefit from the high
sal ari es.

MR. DUBLER replied that the $400 mllion requested by AGC woul d
get them to "sanction" by 2015. He explained that when project-
sanction occurred after a successful open season, AGC would
| ook for a buyer or a builder owner-operator for the pipeline.
At that point the cost would conme from either bond proceeds from
the buil der owner-operator that takes over the project or the
state could decide to nove forward w thout an outside agency and
continue to fund the project. He explained that the benefit from
hiring expertise was conparable to the expense of education
versus the higher cost of ignorance.

4:56:26 PM

SENATOR FRENCH replied that he used the same argunent as M.
Dubl ar noted and could not get nore noney for education, but he
appreciated the sentinent. He asked for clarification on the
$400 nmillion and referred to the fiscal note that showed a $225
mllion request. He inquired if there was another $150 nillion
that had been set aside. He queried where the $400 mllion cane
fromand when it would cone.

MR. DUBLER answered that there had been approximately $70
mllion appropriated and not all of it had been spent, but the
remai nder had been committed. He explained that the remaining
$330 million would be required to bring the project to full
sanction. He detailed that the fiscal note cane through the
House Finance Conmmttee and they added $225 mllion to the
governor's $25 million for a total of $250 million.

SENATOR FRENCH commented that there was an $80 mllion shortage
and no one had witten down the last $80 nillion in order to
make HB 4 work. He asked if there was a plan.

M5. DELBRI DGE answered that the House Finance Commttee did not
feel the need to insert another requirenment into the bill for
AGDC to actually coneback to the legislature for sonme kind of
approval to keep going on what they were doing. She explained

SENATE RES COW TTEE -31- April 2, 2013



that the House Finance Conmittee thought that withholding part
of an appropriation request for a future point in time would
serve as a way to pull AGDC back into the political run of the
| egislature to justify going forward with the additional funds.
She said the sponsors had sonme concerns that w thout the ful
anount in the in-state gas pipeline fund, AGDC would need to
reevaluate its work plan with the possibility of running into
some contracting issues regardi ng engi neeri ng and desi gn.

4:58:28 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said the AG A enabling legislation was carefully
crafted so that the $500 million state assistance flowed through
to a lower tariff. He asked if the $400 million would work in

the sane way to assure that the spending resulted in a |ower
tariff.

MR. DUBLER replied that the $400 million was not included in the
tariff calculation with the nunbers presented to the commttee.
He said the $400 nillion was assumed to be an initia
contribution by the state and did not affect the tariff.

MS. DELBRIDGE added that the $400 nmillion investment was also
sonmething that AGDC nay be able to |leverage in a joint ownership
agreenent as essentially an in-kind state equity contribution to
a pipeline upon which the state could theoretically be earning a
rate of return back to the state. She explained that there was
potential out there to nmake even greater use of the $400 nmillion
then sinply as an initial upfront investnent that does not go
into the tariff.

SENATOR FRENCH stated that he m sunderstood and thought the $400
mllion was what ACGDC needed to get to a sanction. He said it
sounds like AGDC thinks it mght have some leftover funds to
invest in the pipeline itself.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that she may not have been very clear. She
said the work being done to date could be viewed as an in-kind
contribution by the state in exchange for an equity
contri bution.

SENATOR FRENCH asked who the in-kind contribution would be made
to and who would own this pipeline.

V5. DELBRI DGE responded that the legislature would give AGC the
authority to determne the ownership and operating structure of
the pipeline. She explained that AG)C would need to understand
specifically at sonme point in time what the lay of the |land was

SENATE RES COW TTEE -32- April 2, 2013



and how they could best neet their mission of getting a gas
pipeline built that gets gas to Al askans at the |owest possible
rates. She said there <could be interested private sector
entities in being an all-owner or part-owner. She stated that
AGDC | ooked at various nechanisnms and noted that it would cone
dowmn to the art-of-the-deal to negotiate sonmething Ilike an
ownership structure that resulted in getting Al askans gas at the
| onest possi bl e rates.

5:01: 00 PM

MR. DUBLER comented that M. Delbridge had a very good
description regarding in-kind contribution. He said ACGDC
proposed a 75/25 percent debt-to-equity strategy to get the
| owest possible tariff. The 25 percent equity on $8 billion
woul d end up to be about $2 billion in equity. He expl ained that
AGDC coul d negotiate that the $400 million was going in as part
of a contribution towards the $2 billion in a formof an in-kind
equity contribution by the state for partial ownership.

SENATOR FRENCH commented that there was nothing in the bill that
described what the ownership structure of the pipeline. He
remarked that the pipeline could wind up being that the state
was a part-owner, a non-owner, or ExxonMbil could own the
pipeline all by itself if it brought the | owest cost gas.

MR. DUBLER answered correct. He explained that the idea was AGDC
did not currently know if anybody was interested in buying the
pipeline or if the state was interested in owning the pipeline.
He asserted that prescribing sonething in | aw was sonething that
the sponsors were hesitant to do. He stated that the intent was
to leave flexibility to a strong governed board to nake
determ nations after an open season determ ned project viability
and then put the pipeline on the nmarket to see who was
i nterested.

SENATOR M CCI CHE asked to clarify that the $400 million would be
an intellectual asset if it blended with AGA He sumarized
that the asset would entail intellectual property, design
property, permtting property, and right-of-way agreenents. He
said the asset would be marketable and could off-set the cost of
an agreenent with another entity.

MS. DELBRI DGE answered correct. She explained that another key
aspect was the Federal Environnmental |npact Statement (EI'S). She
noted that the EIS was another asset on which key federal
permtting and other decisions were going to be nmde. She
di scl osed that ACGCDC was already building assets by |everaging

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 33- April 2, 2013



its investnment. She stated that the sponsors had repeatedly said
there were different ownership scenarios and they were hopeful
that the private sector stepped up to own the pipeline. She
reiterated that it did not matter who owned the pipeline or what
the ownership mx was, as long as Al askans received gas at the
| owest possi ble rates.

SENATOR M CCICHE commented that it was key for Alaskans to
understand that we were buying a real asset with what we were
investing in the pipeline project. He noted that there had been
waste in the past, but it was inperative that Al askans
understand the inportance of the project and HB 4.

5:04:29 PM

M5. DELBRI DGE proceeded on page 11 and explained that AGDC s
operating budget would be subject to the Executive Budget Act.
She said the stipulation was another way to make sure AGDC was
accountable to Alaskans for the noney it received fromthe state
and accountable back to the state treasury. She reveal ed that
the bill would make AGC s board nenbers subject to the public
official disclosure rules that were currently in state statute,
an action that would provide an appropriate check-and-bal ance
that was addressed by Senator French regarding individuals that
could come fromindustry jobs.

She expl ained page 12 regarding the way the legislation tried to
maxim ze the state's efforts in gas pipeline devel opnent. She
said the legislation would provide additional state support for
a project that the legislature determned to be in the public's
i nterest by evoking whatever the state could do to keep costs as
low as possible, reduce delays, and benefit Alaskans. She
reiterated that HB 4 would I|imt judicial review of state
permtting decisions and |ease authorizations in order to avoid
delays and injunctive relief that could be crippling to a
project, especially once construction had started. She noted
that the judicial review |[imtations were in Section 13 of the
bill. She said the legislation would tell the DNR to not charge
AGDC the annual fees on the state right-of-way |ease. She noted
that AGDC was currently paying $180,000 annually to the state
for the right-of-way |ease. She explained that HB 4 would waive
state and | ocal property taxes during pipeline construction. She
noted that HB 4 would sunset the Al aska Natural Gas Devel opnent
Aut hority (ANGDA) per an audit reconmendati on.

SENATOR M CCICHE addressed a question he had received from

constituents regarding how to reconcile the fact that ANGDA was
created from a voter initiative. He asked how it would be

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 34- April 2, 2013



explained to Alaskans that we were noving forward with the
intent of the initiative.

MS. DELBRIDGE replied that she thought the sponsors would very
much agree with Senator Mcciche and do respect very much what
the voters attenpted to do through the 2002 initiative. She said
t he sponsors believed that the resoundi ng nmessage from Al askans
was the need for the state to step up and do sonething to
develop a gas pipeline that wuld benefit Al askans. She
commended ANGDA for their good work over the years and their
devel opnment of sone plans. She noted that nuch of ANGDA s work
was contingent upon other things going forward that were not
within their control. She referenced the D vision of Legislative
Audit's 2010 audit that recommended sun-setting ANGDA. She
expl ained that the audit found ANGDA was duplicating the state's
efforts at developing gas pipelines, may have exceeded sone of
its statutory authorities, and no longer served the kind of
purpose that it was created to serve. She asserted that the
sponsors believed that AGDC would be able to carry on what the
voters in 2002 intended by having the state step up and assi st
by devel opi ng the pipelines.

SENATOR M CClI CHE asked if the legislative findings and intent in
Section 1 largely net the voters' desires when ANGDA was
creat ed.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that the legislative findings and intent
in HB 4 related very specifically to the bill. She remarked that
ANGDA had a very long host of findings to begin the ballot
measure when they were created. She said it was interesting to
note the things that were happening in the state regarding gas
avai lability from different sources and the crisis node at the
time, circunstances that did not necessarily apply anynore at
present .

5:08: 58 PM

She addressed page 13 regarding the requirenent for state
entities to cooperate with AGDC and share information. She said
the section also required that AGDC not duplicate work that the
state was al ready doing on gas pipelines. She explained that the
legislation set forth that the state would need to provide
wat er, sand, gravel, and other non-hydrocarbon natural resources
to AGDC. She said AGC would conpensate the agencies the usua
prices for the natural resources, but the costs could not be
included in the tariff base and passed on to pipeline shippers.
She explained that passing on costs to the pipelines shippers
woul d increase costs to the rate payers. She declared that using

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 35- April 2, 2013



state resources to support what the state was doing and not
passing costs onto rate payers would be what the state would
want to step up and do. She said the door was open to a future
| egislature to appropriate noney directly to cover the natura
resource costs wth AGXC reinbursing a state agency for
mat eri al s.

M5. DELBRI DGE addressed page 14 regarding the way |egislation
would resolve regulatory wuncertainties. She said regulatory
issues were very inportant because it was uncertain how one
woul d be regul ated, under what kind of tine franmes, under what
ki nd of standards, and whether or not the kind of financial deal
that was needed would be all owed. She enphasized that regul atory
uncertainties created trenendous uncertainty and risk. She
asserted that potential private sector partners involved in a
pi peline project were risk adverse. She said uncertainty could
add costs and delay tinelines. She stated that AGDC had been
very clear that it needed to know how it was going to be
regul ated before it went out to solicit private sector partners.
She added that AGC would also require being able to operate as
a contract <carrier pipeline. The legislation would allow
contract carriage through two key ways: by adding a new type of
state right-of-way |ease covenants that strictly applied to
contract carriers gas pipelines, and through the RCA's
oversight. She said the sponsors took great steps in both cases
to make sure that the legislation reinforced a very |ong
standing state policy that applied when using a state |and grant
or resource. She explained that pipelines need to be fair, offer
reasonable access to new and future shippers, and encourage
future devel opnment of oil and gas basins in Al aska. She asserted
that there was broad opportunity on a nunber of |evels.

5:11:35 PM

SENATOR MCCICHE asked why the RCA would regulate a gas
transm ssion pipeline. He inquired if the RCA would regulate the
pipeline's entire route.

M5. DELBRIDGE answered that the RCA would regulate the entire
route.

SENATOR M CCI CHE asked why the RCA would regulate a transm ssion
pi pel i ne.

V5. DELBRI DGE responded that the RCA currently regul ated either
public utility pipelines or common carrier pipelines. She said
the sponsors understood that there were benefits to regul ation
that both protected the carrier and the consunmers. She renmarked

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 36- April 2, 2013



that a reasonable anount of oversight and certainty would be
provided for the private sector. She asked Senator Mcciche if
he was referring to the state's jurisdiction over a gas
pi pel i ne.

SENATOR M CCICHE replied that he would rephrase the question. He
asked if the ownership and operations were not be determ ned,
what if a future owner-operator decided to have a pipeline that
may not be common carrier until it reached a densely popul ated
area, was regulated in different sections, and when it becane
common carrier or sone other agreenent, it would be hard to say
what the arrangenment would be in the future at that point.

M5. DELBRI DGE answered that the local distribution networks that
go directly to get the gas off of the nmainline into conmunities
would still be regulated as public utilities. She enphasized
that AGDC would require contract carriage in order to secure
long term shipping commtnents that would support pipeline
financing. She noted that gas was a little bit different in the
sense that the end users of gas were imediately off of the
pipeline with a need for gas to fuel year round, 24 hours per
day operations. She explained that a public utility needs to
know every day that a certain amount of gas was coming into its
power plant wthout interruption. An industrial process would
generally work the same way with a need to know that gas was
going to be there. She said utilities and industrial gas users
want to make sure that they could sign long term commtnents
t hat guarant eed supply.

5:14:11 PM

MR. DUBLER added that AGDC had |egal counsel |ook into whether
FERC could regulate the proposed pipeline since it was not an
interstate pipeline. He said FERC had no jurisdiction and the
opi nion received by AGC was that FERC would not be able to. He
noted that some legislators in prior commttees felt very
strongly that regulation was inportant wth some sort of
oversight board. He summarized that w thout FERC, RCA was the
only other regulatory option.

SENATOR DYSON stated that because AGDC would be a natural
nmonopoly, he did not wunderstand how there would not be sone
regulation to protect the consuners and that was what the RCA
was about. He asked if Senator M cciche was maki ng an argunent
t hat there should not be RCA regul ation.

SENATOR M CCI CHE answered no and stated that he was not nmaking
that argunent. He explained that all transm ssion pipelines in

SENATE RES COW TTEE -37- April 2, 2013



the U S. were regulated one way or another. He stated that he
was curious why AGDC chose the RCA "avenue" and he thought that
was a good answer.

SENATOR DYSON replied that the vast difference in Al aska was
that nost places in the Lower 48 had alternative pipelines and
there was not a natural nonopoly.

SENATOR MCGUI RE pointed out to Senator M cciche that the recent
hi story on the gas pipeline occurred when SB 287 and HB 369 were
first introduced in 2010. She noted that there was a bit of a
war goi ng on between people who wanted to pursue the AG A |ine
to the Lower 48 versus a line for the Asian market with an in-
state line. She said people who supported Representative
Chenault's bill and her bill thought the nmarket was in Asia in
addition to an in-state line with the belief that gas should go
to residents first. She explained that an in-state gas caucus
was fornmed and the delegation went to Washington D.C. in the
spring of 2010. She divulged that certain nenbers of an
adm nistration had actually solicited an opinion from FERC to
ask that they have authority over an in-state line. She said the
del egation was able to quash the opinion and solicit the caucus'
own opinion that made it very clear that any in-state |line would
never be governed by FERC. She asserted that it was very
inmportant that it was the RCA because you want to have authority
over the agency in addition to the ability to deliver to
Al askans. She stated that there was nore than just the fact that
it was to consuners in Alaska, there was a fact that you could
often have conpeting lines. She noted that FERC made it very
clear to the delegation that they would not allow conpeting
lines if FERC had jurisdiction over Alaska's in-state line. She
summarized that if the FERC course had not been changed, Al aska
woul d not have seen a pipeline.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what would ultimately protect consumers if
the pipeline delivered gas that was nore expensive than Cook
Inlet gas. He noted an exanple where Anchorage consumners woul d
not have a choice if Enstar Natural Gas Conpany bought $15 gas
from the pipeline versus $8 gas that mght be available in Cook
I nlet.

5:18: 33 PM

MS. DELBRI DGE answered that unless people saw reasonably priced
gas that was transported from the pipeline, contracts would not
be signed to have gas shipped on the gas pipeline. She noted
that Senator Dyson was quite right with his assessnment that
there was necessarily no conpetition, but that was |argely why

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 38- April 2, 2013



the regul atory section allowed for contract carriage, negotiated
contracts, and recourse tariffs. She explained that the recourse
tariff was a cost based, RCA approved rate that anyone coul d get
in on the pipeline at any tinme if they wanted to negotiate or
not. She said the recourse tariff added an elenment of fairness
to sone degree for parties that did not want to negotiate, did
not have the neans to negotiate, or negotiations did not work
out. She reiterated that the recourse tariff would always be an
opportunity for a cost based, RCA approved rate. She said
generally that Enst ar and ot her public utilities were
accountable to the people that accept their service. She
specified that electric utilities were generally cooperatives
with el ected boards that provided general accountability.

MR. DUBLER stated that he believed the utilities were nonopolies
as well and were subject to RCA oversight. He said he would not
believe that the RCA would approve an increase in a utility's
cost of gas if they signed up for a pipeline. He cited an
exanpl e where the pipeline's price was $12 and the Cook Inlet
price was $10 with the utility opting for the $12 gas, even
t hough there was plentiful supply at $10. He stated that he did
not believe the RCA woul d approve an increase and noted that the
i ncreased cost would probably have to cone out of the utility's
share.

5:20: 40 PM

M5. DELBRI DGE addressed page 15 regarding contract carriage. She
expl ained that shippers need to know that the space that they
were reserving by signing long term commtnents was avail able

period. She said the pipeline needs to know that it had
guaranteed paynents comng in over a length of tinme to support
the financing on the pipeline. She stated that the firm

uninterruptable contracts was the way that gas pipelines were
financed. She specified that the contracts guaranteed future
incone in order to secure revenue bonds that would be issued in
this case to finance the pipeline. She remarked that there could
be a perception at tinmes that contract carriage precluded
opportunities in a pipeline because it does not have that common
carriage aspect of imediately noving over and prorating
everyone's existing capacity to make room for any new coner at
any point in time. She reiterated that the contract carrier line
was used due to the need for firm commtnents and firm anounts
of capacity reserved. She said contract carriage did not allow
for prorating the capacity, but allowed for expansions that
provi ded opportunities for new people to get in on the pipeline.

She expl ai ned that the pipeline would provide advanced notice of
expansi on opportunities so that people who know that they have

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 39- April 2, 2013



gas that they want to be commtting could think about those
wi ndows. She noted that the advanced notice nmay |et people that
just acquired gas |leases for developnment wth w ndows of
opportunity to consider. She summarized that it was very
inmportant to the sponsors that even while enabling the contract
carrier status, the ability to protect the access to the
pi peline and others in the future was absol utely naintai ned.

5:22:35 PM

SENATOR FRENCH stated that the reality was that the majority of
the gas wuld come from either ConocoPhillips, BP, or
ExxonMbbi |l . He asked for nanes of other conpanies that mght be
i nvol ved.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that the sponsors had no know edge of the
actual expression of interest or any comrercial discussions. She
explained that |limted to 500 MCFD, the sponsors believed that
you may get gas from anyone of the three noted conpanies and
perhaps some other folks that have been Iooking at gas
opportunities mght see an avenue to get resources to narket.
She cited an exanple that Anadarko Petroleum Corporation had
| eases at Gubik that had |ong been said to hold gas. She pointed
out that there was no pipeline that would carry Gubik field gas
to any kind of market. She stated that there were certainly
other North Slope operators that may have finds as well. She
said the sponsors believed that the pipeline would offer
opportunities. She noted that Doyon, Limted was | ooking at sone
prospects in the Yukon and Nenana basins. She noted that a
letter of support was in the conmmttee's packet about how the
pi peline would provide Doyon with sonme opportunity if they nade
the kind of find that they would hope to and to get their gas to
mar ket. She nmentioned that Cook Inlet Energy was exploring in
the Susitna Flats area where they expect to encounter gas and
woul d certainly like to know that a pipeline was in the vicinity
to carry sonme of that resource away.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the Susitna Flats was the area near the
Susi tna R ver.

M5. DELBRIDGE replied that she believed the Susitna Flats was in
the valley right along the Susitna River area.

5:25: 07 PM

V5. DELBRIDGE set forth that the bill's intent was to retain the
key common carriage principals of expansions that were required
when there were reasonable terns and access for new shippers
while allowing contract carriage. She said acconplishing the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -40- April 2, 2013



intent in the legislation would be done through an interface of
both the right-of-way leasing act and the new regulatory
chapter; both areas of the bill required expansions on
cormercially reasonable ternms. She detailed that both areas
required that in an expansion, the pipeline could not nake an
initial shipper pay any nore than what was allowed by the
shipper's contract with the pipeline. Therefore the cost of
expansion would be borne by the people shipping gas in the
expanded-capacity, just as the initial costs were to be borne by
t he people shipping gas in the initial-capacity.

SENATOR FRENCH addressed expansions with the 500 MCFD pipeline
and asked what expansion could there be as long as AG A was
alive and wel | .

M5. DELBRIDCGE replied that she had spoken a few mnutes prior
regarding the AG A non-conpete nentions in the bill and forgot
to address expansions in the current context. She explained that
the expansion were required as long as they did not cause a
pipeline to be conpeting wth AG A She said the |egislation was
structured to accommpdate a tinme in the future when the state
was no |onger paying inducenents to a licensee under AGA,
perhaps five or ten years after the pipeline was operation, 2025
or 2030. She noted that expansions would not be |ikely to happen
in the immediate tine frame to where it would be a problem She
explained that expansion nentioned in the bill was all
condi tioned upon not creating a conpeting issue.

MR. DUBLER added that Senator French hit on exactly one of the
|arge problems that ACDC had wth the A3 A restriction and
common carriage. He said a comon carriage pipeline wth a
cust oner base where shippers |imted-out the 500 MCFD
restriction, would force shippers to cut their percentages to
accommodate a new request. He enphasized that contract carriage
woul d not all ow percentage cuts to shi ppers.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what the pipeline dianeter size was.
MR. DUBLER replied that the dianeter was a 36 inch steel pipe.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what the naxi mum throughput was for the
pi peline's wall thickness.

5:28:19 PM

DAN FAUSKE, President, AGDC, Anchorage, Alaska, replied that the
500 MCFD |imtations were repeatedly addressed. He asserted that
the issue was how nmuch gas could the pipeline hold or nove. He

SENATE RES COW TTEE -41- April 2, 2013



expl ained that the maxi num capacity on the pipeline would be
about 1.6 billion cubic feet of gas per day (BCFD). He pointed
out that when the proposed pipeline was 24 inches with 2500
pounds per square inch (PSI) hauling liquid due to increased
conpression, the 24 inch line could carry up to 1 BCFD. He
remarked that AGDC had limted the discussion to 500 MCFD and
noted that the AGQA restrictions were lifted below the 68th
parallel north. He stated that AGDC s design, engineering, and
all of their work was bei ng designed towards 500 MCFD.

MR. DUBLER added that the 1.6 BCFD was a theoretical throughput
and AGDC had not done any designs over 500 MCFD in order to stay
wi t hin accordance of the AG A restrictions.

5:30: 46 PM

CHAIR GJESSEL comended the input from +the experienced
i ndividuals. She noted the urgency in energy needs wth Al askans
waiting for Alaska's natural gas to be delivered. She said the
cost of delay was a pretty high price that the commttee did not
want to continue to pay. She appreciated the bill's sponsors'
sense of |eadership and their understanding of the urgency. She
pointed out that Representative Hawker and Speaker Chenault
hosted an informative negaproject semnar during the hearing of
HB 4 and nmany |legislators |earned about the stage-gate approach.
She announced that Attorney General M chael Geraghty had been
invited to tonobrrows neeting to address the questions
pertaining to the "legacy wells" and what Al aska's opportunity
was as far as the federal governnent and getting the National
Pet rol eum Reserve- Al aska (NPRA) wel|ls addressed. She stated that
after Attorney General Geraghty, the committee would continue
with HB 4.

5:32: 24 PM

CHAIR G ESSEL adjourned the Senate Resources Standing Conmttee
neeting at 5:32 p.m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -42- April 2, 2013



